FKEnt

County
Councll

kent.gov.uk

AGENDA

Kent County Council

REGULATION COMMITTEE MEMBER PANEL

Friday, 18th March, 2016, at 2.30 pm Ask for: Andrew Tait
TN2 Community Centre,Lakeside, Greggs Telephone 03000 416749
Wood Road, Tunbridge Wells TN2 3LZ

Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting

Membership

Mr AHT Bowles (Chairman), Mr C W Caller, Mr A D Crowther, MrsV J Dagger and
Mr P J Homewood

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1. Membership and Substitutes
Declarations of Interest by Members for items on the agenda

Application to extinguish Public Footpath WB71 in Tunbridge Wells (Pages 3 - 54)

I

Other items which the Chairman decides are Urgent

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services
03000 416647

Thursday, 10 March 2016






Agenda Item 3

Application to extinguish public footpath WB71 in Tunbridge Wells

A report by the Head of Regulatory Services to Kent County Council's Regulation
Committee Member Panel on Friday 18" March 2016.

Recommendation: | recommend that the applicant be informed that the
application to extinguish public footpath WB71 in Tunbridge Wells has been
accepted.

Local Member: Mr Chris Hoare Unrestricted item

Introduction and background

1. The Kent County Council has received an application to extinguish public
footpath WB71 at Tunbridge Wells. The application has been made by the
landowner, Town & Country Housing Group (“TCHG"), on the basis that the path is
not needed for public use as there is a suitable alternative serving the same purpose
(see Appendix A for a copy of the plan).  Public footpath WB71 is not currently
shown on the Definitive Map of Public Rights of Way {(see Appendix B for an extract
of the Definitive Map). Footpath WB71 commences on Burslem Road adjacent to
property number 50 and runs generally south-east to its connection with Greggs
Wood Road, adjacent to property number 135.

2. A Definitive Map Modification Order ("DMMQ”) was made on 18 June 2015 to
record public footpath WB71 following the investigation of an application under
section 53 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, dated 30 December 2011, by local
Councillor Frank Williams (see Appendix C for a copy of the DMMO). The Order
was made on the basis that public rights on foot were reasonably alleged to subsist
due to use by the public over a period in excess of 20 years (see Appendix D for a
copy of the delegated authority report). The decision to make this Order was finely
balanced. Although no objections were received to the Order during the six week
statutory notice period, a petition was received shortly after from local residents who
were against the recording of the path, mainly due to the anti-social behaviour that
had taken place in the garage area in the past. A number of those who had signed
the petition had also given evidence of use of the Order route (see Appendix E for a
copy of the petition).

3 The matter has become more complicated because a development of 6
dwellings had been built on the land over which footpath WB71 runs prior to the
making of the DMMO. The area over which the footpath runs previously housed
garages with vehicular access at either end and with bollards running across the
centre to prevent cars cutting through. TCHG did not wish to apply to divert the path
as it would not be in the interests of the occupiers of the new dwellings, or in the
interests of a number of other local residents who had signed the petition against the
path as mentioned above. There is an existing footway running from Burslem Road
to Greggs Wood Road via Harries Road which serves the same purpose (albeit a bit
longer), therefore it is considered that footpath WB71 is not needed for public use.

Page 3 1



4. So whilst the DMMO has been made it has not been confirmed because it is
considered that, in view of the change in circumstances, it makes better sense to
extinguish this path by the making of a Public Path Extinguishment Order ("“PPEQ")
and then to confirm the two Orders at the same time. In this way, footpath WB71
would never appear on the Definitive Map. The Order would be confirmed but
instantly extinguished by the confirmation of the proposed PPEO.

Policy

o8 The Countryside Access Improvement Plan, Operational Management
document (2013) sets out the County Council's priorities for keeping the Definitive
Map and Statement up to date. The main priorities in respect of Public Path Change
Orders are:

Public Path Change Orders will normally be processed in the order in which
applications are received, except in any of the following circumstances where an
Order maybe processed sooner:
e Where it will satisfy one or more of the relevant key principles set out in
paragraphs 4.14 — 4.25 of the CAIP Operational Management document,
 Where an application has been made to the County Council in its capacity as
Planning Authority
o Where the processing of an Order could save significant costs incurred in
other Rights of Way functions
e Where a Public Path Change Order is made concurrently with Orders made
under Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act.

6. The County Council will take into account whether the following criteria are
satisfied before promoting a Public Path Change Order. Irrespective of the following,
the statutory reasons (as set out within the Legal Tests section) for changing Public
Rights of Way must apply.

I. The status of the route must not be in dispute at the time of the application,
unless the Public Path Order is being implemented concurrently with an
application under Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.

Il. The applicant must agree to meet the County Council’s costs of promoting the
Order and bringing the new path into a fit condition for public use {as set out
within section 3 of the Policy).

Il.The applicant must also agree to defray any compensation which may
become payable as a result of the proposal.

IV.The definitive line should, where it is considered by the County Council to be
reasonably practicable, be open, clear and safe to use.

7. However, nothing in this policy is intended to prevent the County Council

promoting a Public Path Change Order in any case where it considers it appropriate
in all the circumstances to do so.

Page 4



Legal Tests

8. Legislation relating to the extinguishment of a public path is contained within
Section 118 of The Highways Act 1980; the procedure is contained within Schedule
6 of the same Act. The County Council must consider the following issues:

(i) The County Council may make an Order to extinguish a public path if it
considers it expedient to do so on the grounds that it is not needed for public
use.

(i) The second major constraint is that the Order may not be confirmed, either
by the County Council in the absence of objections or by the secretary of state
when objections have been received, unless it has had regard to:
(a) the extent to which it appears that the path would, apart from the
Order, be likely to be used by the public; and
(b) the effect which the extinguishment would have as respects land
served by the path or way.

Consultations:

9. Consultations have been carried out as required and the following responses
were received.

County Member and Borough Councillors

County Member Chris Hoare was consuited. Mr Hoare does not agree with the
proposal as he has received a number of objections from elderly and infirm
constituents who want this short-cut to the local shops, chemist and post office to
remain.

Tunbridge Wells Borough Councillors Bob Backhouse, Lynne Weatherly and Frank
Williams were consulted. No response was received from Councillor Weatherley.
Councillor Williams wrote again to those people who had submitted evidence of use
as part of his DMMO application (see paragraph 3 above). Of those 29 people, less
himself, two have died and at least two have severe health conditions that prevent a
response. From the thirteen responses he did receive back, eight were opposed to
the path being extinguished, whilst five were in support of it being extinguished.
Councillor Williams decided to follow the wishes of the majority and oppose the
extinguishment. Councillor Backhouse agrees with the proposal, which highlights a
difference of opinion between Councillors.

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council's Planning Services were consulted but no
response was received.

User Groups
The Ramblers, Open Spaces Society and British Horse Society were consulted. The

only response received was from the Ramblers, who agreed with the proposal to
extinguish the route and was surprised that TCHG had not objected to the DMMO.

Page 5 3



Statutory Undertakers

None of the Statutory Undertakers who responded to the consultation objected to the
proposal.

Area Public Righis of Way Manager

The West Kent Area Public Rights of Way Manager does not object to or support the
proposal. He points out that the path does not contribute much to the overall
network in the vicinity, there being no other rights of way in the area and its closure
would not be a loss to the wider walking public. However he does recognise that it is
the most direct link from a number of houses to the shops and facilities of Greggs
Wood Road and its closure would be of dis-benefit to those limited number of
houses.

The Case - the proposed extinguishment of public footpath WB71 at Tunbridge
Wells

10.  In dealing with the application to extinguish a public right of way, consideration
must be given to the following criteria of Section 118 of the Highways Act 1980:

a) Whether it is expedient to extinguish the path on the ground that it is not needed
for public use;

(b) The extent to which it appears that the path would, apart from the Order, be likely
to be used by the public;

(c) The effect which the extinguishment would have as respects land served by the
path or way.

| will now take these points and my conclusions upen them individually:

a) Whether it is expedient to extinguish the path on the ground that it is not needed
for public use

As | have already set out earlier in this report, it is expedient to extinguish the path.
It appears that footpath WB71 might be used by some local residents to access the
shops and community centre, which are located at point C on plan at Appendix A.
However, considering the location of these shops to the footpath concerned, use is
likely to be limited to a small number of residents from Burslem Road who would use
this path rather than the existing footways. For example, it would be better for
anyone living in Harries Road to continue on Harries Road to Greggs Wood Road,
likewise, anyone living in Allandale Road or the southern end of Burslem Road would
be better using Burslem Road southwards then Friars Way to connect to Greggs
Wood Road from that direction. Although it may mean an additional 145 metres for
some, it is considered that the existing footway via Harries Road generally serves the
same purpose and is substantially as convenient. Therefore it is considered footpath
WB71 is not needed for public use.

Page 6



b) The extent to which it appears that the path would, apart from the Order, be likely
to be used by the public

County Member Chris Hoare and local Councillor Frank Williams have stated that
some of their more elderly and infirm constituents would use the path. The path has
not been open for use for some time now, and although the County Council
understands that this may have caused inconvenience for some, a balance should
be sought. The legislation does not require that no one at ali would use the path, but
looks at the extent of that likely use. As explained at a) above, the path would, apart
from the Order, be likely to be used only by a limited number of local residents.

c) The effect which the extinguishment would have as respecis land served by the
path or way

The land over which footpath WB71 runs is now a residential area of 6 dwellings.
Originally the openings at either end were for vehicular access to and from the
garages, although it also allowed for people to cut through from Burslem Road to
Greggs Wood Road, primarily to access the local shops. The path is not needed to
access that area now and so the extinguishment of the path will not adversely affect
those new residents.

Recommendation
11.  Therefore, for the reasons above, | recommend that the applicant be informed

that the application to extinguish public footpath WB71 under Section 118 of the
Highways Act 1980 has been accepted.

Accountable Officer:

Mr Mike Overbeke — Tel: 03000 413427 or Email: mike.overbeke@kent.gov.uk
Case Officer:

Mrs Maria McLauchlan - Tel; 03000 413420 or Email: maria.mclauchlan@kent.gov.uk

The case file is available for viewing on request at the PROW & Access Service,
Invicta House, County Hall, Maidstone, Kent, ME14 1XX. Please contact the Case
Officer for further details.

List of appendices

Appendix A - Plan of proposal

Appendix B - Extract from the Definitive Map, sheet 034 (TQ64SW)
Appendix C - Copy of the DMMO

Appendix D - Delegated authority report relating to the DMMO application
Appendix E - Copy of petition against the footpath

Case file -PROW/WB71/1489

Page 7




Page 8



560'000

14100

141000

560000
Key Highways Act 1980
Route to be The Kent County Council
extinguished Proposd extinguishment of public footpath WB71
at Tunbridge Wells
Produced by the KCC Public Righls of Way and Access Service.
® Crown Copyright and database right 2013. Ordnance Survey 100019238
?ﬂometres 0i1 0-|2 Created by:| MMcL | Checked by] MMcL
o Mies o - Reference:| PROWMWBT71/ext
Public Rights of Way and Access Service Paqge 9

1:2,500

“E

| o——




Page 10






Page 12






Page 14



Appcrdix B

Calecny
9 & Wpd
B
- EFWODd = _."i e
S
; A e
o+ T 2
Ferpdale” : .
E _- P . l; ‘_1 s
. ol ’ . A I i taguen
mes BB 2 ]
’ : ] r : oo e o [
~ N
== = Foolpath EXTRACT OF THE WORKING COPY OF THE Crealed by: N
-|= Bridleway DEFINITIVE MAP OF PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY MMcL
V-V Restricted Byway FOR THE COUNTY OF KENT Checked by: A
Byway Open to All Traffic © Crown Copyright and database right 2013, Ordnance Survey 100019238 MI\;'CL
Point path number or FOR REFERENCE ONLY — NO FURTHER COPIES "
status changes MAY BE MADE Issue Date:
eme B.o e ALY Unauthorised reproduction Infringes Crown Copyright 20/01/16
1:2500 scale Network Map and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 3
7/ Area covered by 1:2500 Reference: 1:10,000
/] scale Network Map Produced by the KCC Public Rights of Way and Access Service Map sheet 034
0
| Kitometres 0'? 3 01_9 TQ64SW Kent )
[Miles ) 1 foemi %2
0 Page 15 05




Page 16



Appenoix C

IN THE BOROUGH OF TUNBRIDGE WELLS
WILDLIFE AND COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981
DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT FOR THE COUNTY OF KENT
MAP SHEET 034 (TQ64SW)

THE KENT COUNTY COUNCIL
(PUBLIC FOOTPATH WB71, TUNBRIDGE WELLS)

DEFINITIVE MAP MODIFICATION ORDER 2015

This Order is made by the Kent County Council (“the Authority”) under section 53(2)(b) of
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (“the Act”) because it appears to the Authority that
map sheet 034 (TQ64SW) of the Definitive Map and Statement for the County of Kent
requires modification in consequence of the occurrence of an event specified in section
53(3)(c)(i), namely the discovery of evidence by the Authority which shows that a right of
way which is not shown in the map and statement subsists or is reasonably alleged to
subsist over land in the area to which the map relates, being a right of way to such that the
land over which the right subsists is a public path or a restricted byway or, subject to
section 54A, a Byway Open to All Traffic.

The Authority has consulted with every local authority whose area includes the land to
which the Order relates.

The Kent County Council hereby orders that:

1. For the purpose of this Order the relevant date is 1st June 2015.

2. Sheet 034 (TQ64SW) of the Definitive Map for the County of Kent and its associated
Statement shall be modified as described in Part | AND Part |l of the Schedule and
shown on the map attached to this Order.

3. This Order shall take effect on the date it is confirmed and may be cited as the “The

Kent County Council (Public Footpath WB71, Tunbridge Wells) Definitive Map
Modification Order 2015".

GIVEN UNDER THE SEAL OF THE KENT COUNTY COUNCIL THIS | g™ DAY OF
JUNE IN THE YEAR TWO THOUSAND AND FIFTEEN

THE COMMON SEAL OF THE KENT COUNTY COUNCIL
was hereunto affixed in the presence of:

/i/gmﬂ/ ..........
A ISED SIGNATORY

Page 17 Gob-20t8



Page 18



M Y

SCHEDULE
PART I: MODIFICATION OF DEFINITIVE MAP
Description of path to be added
The effect of the Order is to add a public footpath, with a width of 1.2 metres, which
commences on Burslem Road adjacent to property number 50 at NGR TQ 6008 4113
(point A) and runs generally south-east for approximately 13 metres, then turns to run
generally south-south-east for approximately 44 metres and then turns to run generally
south-east again for approximately 9 metres to its connection with Greggs Wood Road,

adjacent to property number 135 at NGR TQ 6012 4108 (point B). Between points A-B on
the Order plan).

PART Il: MODIFICATION OF DEFINITIVE STATEMENT
The Definitive Statement is amended by the addition of the following entry:

WB71 — Footpath
Connections — Bursiem Road, Greggs Wood Road

Added by The Kent County Council (Public Footpath WB71, Tunbridge Wells) Definitive
Map Modification Order 2015 with a width of 1.2 metres for the new length of path.

WILDLIFE AND COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981

THE KENT COUNTY COUNCIL
(PUBLIC FOOTPATH WB71, TUNBRIDGE WELLS)

DEFINITIVE MAP MODIFICATION ORDER 2015

Page 19



Page 20



142000

559500 560000 560500 561000
g
&
|| -
.i;l
E i o AT
g &ﬁ’ . —H
W P e
N s e
H -E,.‘:\?’ \.,f""h"ﬂ "_.-'._ )
: Y e o %
~ Ry
W
“* _§
z
5
.-'.'" i
5 2
2
Jl =
.'l‘q' b
i
H;I-berl
Recreation
nd|
2 | 2
gl I's
s =
B4 &
e gl
g3
; '.afa'.l}g' '
i i AEEL
= iﬁ: E: T
Are IR 2, 560100
i TR < ' Inset scale - 1:2500
F kﬁf' 12‘}‘ g ' = r
Tz B kAL BN A towues SF
1
560000 560500 561000
Key - : N
Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981
The Kent County Council
= = = = « Route to be Added (Public Footpath WB71, Tunbridge Wells)
Definitive Map Modification Order 2015
Produced by the KCC Public Rights of Way and Access Service. 1:10,000
@® Crown Copyright and database right 2013. Ordnance Survey 100019238
0.45 09 : ]
| Kilometres ' | Created by:] MMcL | Checked by;| CW
.| PROWTWIC343
Reference: wert | rﬁi
= . sourci QY
Public Rights of Way and Access Service e b

|5 ag_e—Tl




Page 22



APPENDIX (A

From: Maria McLauchlan (Public Rights of Way Officer — Definition Team)
To: Corporate Director of Growth, Environment & Transport
Subject: Claimed footpath running from Bursiem Road to Greggs Wood Road
at Tunbridge Wells
File Ref: PROW/TWI/C343 District: Tunbridge Wells
Summary: To seek delegated authority to make an Order to modify the Definitive

Map and Statement by adding a public footpath running from Burslem
Road to Greggs Wood Road at Tunbridge Wells
FOR DECISION

Introduction

1. The County Council is the Surveying Authority for Kent and is responsible for producing a
Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way. The current Definitive Map and
Statement were published on 31* May 2013. Under the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981, the County Council is under an obligation to keep the Map and Statement under
continuous review.

Procedure

2. The Countryside Access Improvement Plan, Operational Management document (2013)
sets out the County Council's priorities for keeping the Definitive Map and Statement up
to date and ensuring that the status and alignment of all PROW are correct in accordance
with statutory duties by:-

a) Investigating and determining all claims in accordance with the statement of
priorities

b) Investigating and determining anomalies in accordance with statement of
priorities

c) Processing applications to change PROW in accordance with policy and
statement of priorities.

d) Ensuring all changes are covered by a formal Order

Definitive Map modification cases will normally be investigated in the order in which
applications are received, except in any of the following circumstances, where a case may be
investigated sooner:

¢« Where it will satisfy one or more of the relevant key principles set out in paragraphs
4,14 - 4.25 of the CAIP Operational Management document,
Where the physical existence of the claimed route is threatened by development,

Where investigation of a case would involve substantially the same evidence as a
route currently under investigation or about to be investigated.

Page 23 1



3. The investigation of this particular issue has been carried out in accordance with the
report to the Sub-Committee in February 1990, which outlined the procedures to be used
for sources of evidence and the legal tests to be applied.

Legal Tests

4. (a) Section 53 of The Wildlife and Countryside 1981 states that where the
County Council discovers evidence which, when considered with all other relevant
evidence available to it, shows that a right of way which is not shown in the map and
statement subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist over land in the area to which the
map relates, being a right of way to such that the land over which the right subsists is a
public path or a restricted byway or, subject to section 54A, a Byway Open to All Traffic, it
shall, by Order, make such modifications to the Map and Statement as appear requisite.

(b) Section 31 of the Highways Act 1980 states that “where a way over any
land, other than a way of such character that use of it by the public could not give rise at
common law to any presumption of dedication, has been actually enjoyed by the public as
of right and without interruption for a full period of twenty years, the way is to be deemed
to have been dedicated as a highway unless there is sufficient evidence that there was no
intention during that period to dedicate it". The period of twenty years referred to Is to be
calculated retrospectively from the date when the right of the public to use the way is
brought into question.

(c) Alternatively, a public right of way may be established over a shorter
period of time under Common Law. In Mann v. Brodie (1885), Lord Blackburn considered
that where the public had used a route “for so long and in such a manner that the
(landowner]... must have been aware that members of the public were acting under a
belief that the right of way had been dedicated and had taken no steps to disabuse them
of that belief, it is not conclusive evidence, but evidence which those who have to find the
fact may find that there was a dedication by the owner whoever he was", i.e. the
dedication of a way as a public right of way can be implied by evidence of use by the
public {no minimum period is required) and of acquiescence of that use by the landowner.

The Case

5. A plan showing the claimed route is included as Appendix A to this report and a detailed
description of the case can be found in Appendix B to this report.

Investigation

6. Investigations have included the inspection of County Council records and documents
available from other sources.

7. | have considered all of the evidence available. The documentary evidence and the
results of the legal tests applied are set out and examined in Appendix B.

Conclusion
8. Investigations have been carried out in accordance with procedures and proper legal

tests have been applied to the evidence gathered during the investigation. The result of
the investigation is that a public right of way is reasonably alleged to subsist.

Page 24 2



Recommendation
9. | recommend that the County Council makes an Order to modify the Definitive Map and

Statement by adding a public footpath running from Burslem Road to Greggs Wood Road
at Tunbridge Wells, as shown on the attached plan marked Appendix A.

Signature N AU rer e USROS

Date ... 2 (—f@dﬂ/gf) LS

Background Documents:
APPENDIX A — Plan showing the claimed route
APPENDIX B — Main report
APPENDIX C — Summary of user evidence in support of the application

Contact Officer:

Maria McLauchlan
Tel; 03000 413420

Page 25 3



Page 26



Appcrdix A

141100

560100

141400

Key Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981
Claimed footpath running between A
_____ Cialmad route Burslgm Road and Greggs Wood Road,
Tunbridge Wells
Prod 1:1,250
uced by the KCC Public Rights af Way and Access Service.
€ Crown Copyright and database right 2013. Ordnance Survey 100019238
?m s 0-‘:45 . 0.09 Crealed by:] MMcL |Checked by] mmMeL
oMes 00275 i Reference:| PROWAWICI43

Public Rights of Way and Access Service

| D LYo TN

T




Page 28



g ; e
'-.--_}-.".-‘ ’ \\\\\k\\ﬁ
k! .'“.‘";-(_ g Iﬂ"j%}.‘}} 3

A

L »."—%,“”.3':"'1%-'-: o

“\\_

AR
R

)

iV5E
L)

RN
i

DD
o
)

L1l
Y
Ao

-7
.

Ll Ei e

B

al:

(AR
8

»

- - ST ] i
R e B A e A P WA AR W P Sl AN,
— = Foolipath EXTRACT OF THE WORKING COPY OF THE Craated by: N
~— | =~ Bridleway DEFINITIVE MAP OF PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY MMeL
V-V Restricled Byway FOR THE COUNTY OF KENT Segaiby A
Byway Open to All Traflic © Crown Copyright and database sight 2013 Ordnance Survey 100019238 ML
&, Point path number or FOR REFERENCE ONLY - NO FURTHER COPIES eRD
status changes . MAY BE MADE ssue Date:
e (ROt R e o eI Unauthorised reproduction Infringes Crown Copyright 19/11/2014
1:2500 scale Nemm Map snd may lead FI,:Mpmset:utit'u'n or civil proceedings Relerence: 1:10.000
W Area covered by 12500 ) )
scale Network Map Produced by the KCC Public Rights of Way and Accass Servica Map sheet 034
0 0.45 09  TQ64SW
| Kilomelres 1 E
I T -
o Mites 025 05

—Page 29




Page 30



APPENDIX B

Case Title: Claimed footpath running from Burslem Road to Greggs Wood Road at
Tunbridge Wells

Ref: PROW/TW/C343

APPLICANT'S SUBMISSION

10.The application (Schedule 7 dated 30 December 2011) has been made by Mr Frank
Williams (“the applicant"), resident and local councillor. The applicant has applied for an
Order under Section 53(5) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 to modify the
Definitive Map and Statement for the area by adding a footpath running from Burslem
Road to Greggs Wood Road (“the claimed route™).

11. In support of the application, the applicant has provided evidence of use by 30 witnesses.

Description of route

12.The claimed route (shown on the plan at Appendix A) commences on Burslem Road
adjacent to property number 50 and runs generally south-east for approximately 13
metras, then turns to run generally south-south-east for approximately 44 metres and
finally turns to run generally south-east again for approximately 9 metres to its connection
with Greggs Wood Road, adjacent to property number 135.

DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE

The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 requires that, when investigating such applications,
the County Council must consider ‘all other relevant evidence available'. | have therefare
interrogated the following documentary evidence:-

Tithe Map (circa 1840}

13.Tithe Maps were produced by the Tithe Commissioners, under the 1836 Tithe
Commutation Act, to record all parcels of land that generated titheable produce. The
Tithe Maps were concerned solely with identifying titheable land but nonetheless can
sometimes provide useful supporting evidence about public rights of way.

14.In this case, the Tithe Map does not show the claimed route.

First Edition Ordnance Survey 1:2500 Map and Book of Reference (circa 1860}

15.The First Edition 25" Ordnance Survey Maps and accompanying Area Reference Books
were produced by Ordnance Survey in an effort to map the entire country at 1:2500 scale.
They were essentially topographical surveys and were not concerned with landownership
and rights, but do provide useful information as to the existence of the routes on the
ground at that time.

16.The First Edition OS Map does not show the claimed route. In addition, the subsequent
0S Maps (2™, 3™ and 4" Editions) do not show the claimed route.

Page 31 5



Finance Act 1910 and Valuer's Field Book

17.The Finance Act 1910 Maps and Valuer's Field Books were documents which recorded
the value of land holdings. The Act provided for the levying of a tax upon the incrementat
value of the land, and between 1910 and 1920 (when it was repealed), the whole country
was surveyed in order to produce a comprehensive record of the site value of all land.
Individual (private) land holdings were shown on the map in different colour wash with
boundaries marked and hereditament numbers accorded to different parcels. The
Valuer's Field Books recorded details about every parcel of land and listed categories for
which a reduction in the amount of tax payable on the land holding could be sought. One
such category was for public rights of way admitted to exist at the time by the landowner.

18.1n this case, the Finance Act map does not show the claimed route.
Parish Map (1950)

19.In consequence of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949, County
Counclls were required to undertake a survey of ‘all lands in their area over which a right
of way... [was] alleged to subsist and then to prepare a draft map showing on it those
footpaths, bridleways and roads used as public paths which the County Council as
Surveying Authority considered to be public rights of way. In practice, the initial surveys
were undertaken by the Parish Councils who were required to call a Parish Meeting to
consider the information to be provided and who then submitted maps and statements
showing the alleged rights of way within their parish.

20.The Parish Map does not show the claimed route as one marked for inclusion.
Draft Map (1952)

21.Following consultation with the District Councils, the County Council then prepared a
Draft Map from the information contained in the Parish Map.

22, The Draft Map does not show the claimed route.

Provisional Map {1952)

23. The Provisional Map for Tunbridge Wells with a relevant date of 1 December 1952 does
not show the claimed route. There was opportunity for landowners, lessees and tenants
to object to this map and no objections were received relating to the claimed route,

Definitive Map (Relevant date 1* December 1952)

24, The National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act (1949) required County Councils
to survey all land over which a Public Right of Way was alleged to subsist and prepare a
map showing these routes. The first Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of
Way for the County of Kent was published with a relevant date of 1® December 1952,

25.The original Definitive Map for the County of Kent did not, therefore, show the claimed
route.

Page 32 6



Review of survey (1970)

26.Foliowing the publication of the Definitive Map in 1952, the County Council, under the
National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949, had a duty to produce a revision
of the original map. Consequently, and following broad consultation, the County Council
published a Draft Revised Map with a relevant date of 1% QOctober 1970.

27.The Draft Revised Map of 1970 did not show the claimed route as being one that was to
be included at this review stage.

Definitive Map (Relevant date 1* April 1987)

28.The 1987 Definitive Map of Public Rights of Way did not, therefore, show the claimed
route.

Definitive Map (Relevant date 31/5/13)

)

29.The current Definitive Map of Public Rights of Way does not show the claimed route.
Section 31(6) Deposits

30.Section 31(6) of the Highways Act 1980 allows a landowner to deposit with the County
Council maps, statements and declarations (formerly statutory declarations) indicating
what ways (if any) over their land have been dedicated as highways. Together, the
deposit of the map and statement with any subsequent declarations is ‘in the absence of
proof of contrary intention, sufficient evidence to negative the intention of the owner or his
successors in title to dedicate any such additional ways as highways'. In Order to remain
effective, the Act requires that any declaration be renewed within every 20 years (formerly
10 years and amended by The Commons (Registration of Town or Village Greens) and
Dedicated Highways (Landowner Statements and Declarations) (England) Regulations
2013},

31.1n this case no Deposit under section 31(6) of the Highways Act 1980 has been submitted
relating to the land over which the claimed route runs.

Page 33 7



CONSULTATIONS

Consultations have been carried out as required. The following responses have been
received;

County Member

32.County Member, Chris Hoare, was consuited but no response was received.

Tunbridge Wells Borough Councillors

33.Councillors Bob Backhouse and Lynn Weatherly were consulted. Clir Weatherly
responded that she and residents of her care home had used the claimed route for 23
years but she had no issue with walking along Harries Road.

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council

34. Tunbridge Wells Planning Services were consulted but no response was received.

User Groups

35.The Ramblers, British Horse Society ("BHS") and Open Spaces Society ("OSS") were
consulted but no response was received from any of these user groups.

Page 34 8



USER EVIDENCE

36.In support of the application, 30 user evidence forms were submitted. These are
summarised at Appendix C. Despite offers of interview to all those who had submitted a
UEF, and a chaser letter, only 7 face to face interviews were undertaken. It is understood
that two witnesses have died since the application was submitted and two were unwell
and so could not be interviewed; one person had moved away. Two identical pre-drawn
maps accompanied the UEFs submitted with the application — one map for UEFs 1-18
and another for UEFs19-30, with signatures agreeing that the route shown on those maps
was the one used by the witnesses.

37.There is evidence of use of a route on foot from Burslem Road to Greggs Wood Road
since 1961. Frequency of use has varied, from some witnesses using it daily and others
just occasionally. The majority of witnesses used the route to access the shops in
Greggs Wood Road. None of the witnesses had ever been challenged or been given
permission; there have never been any restrictions, obstructions or prohibitive notices.

38.7 witnesses were interviewed face to face. In marking the route they used on a plan, and
describing the route used, this varied somewhat. 2 of the witnesses interviewed used a
different alignment to that claimed; 1 could not mark the plan due to poor eyesight, but
her description was not precise enough to be clear; 1 other marked the route used as the
claimed route but stated that he also used the altemative (north) exit onto Greggs Wood
Road sometimes, his route varying depending on whether cars were parked in the garage
area; 3, including the applicant, marked the route on the plan as claimed. 1 of the
witnesses who was interviewed also stated that they rented a garage at that site for a
number of years. In addition, 2 people who had signed UEFs submitted with the
application, subsequently wrote stating that they had not used the claimed route at all.

LANDOWNER

39.The Town & Country Housing Group ("TCHG") has owned the land over which the
claimed route runs since 1992; prior to that it was owned by Tunbridge Wells Borough
Council. A representative from the TCHG stated that the area was a former garage site
which attracted a great deal of anti-social behaviour (this has been corroborated by some
residents whose properties back onto the site). Consultation events were held to make
the local community aware of the development plans and the TCHG received no
objections in regard to a possible right of way. Whilst designing the scheme TCHG took
advice from the local Police Architectural Officer who stated that no walkway should be
incorporated as this would result in continued anti-social behaviour. The TCHG has
never erected and maintained any notices, barriers or other works on that site until April
2014 when hoardings were erected whilst the development took place. The TCHG has
not received any complaints about the area being closed.

Page 35 9



STATUTE AND LEGAL TESTS

40.Section 53 of The Wildlife and Countryside 1981 states that where the County Council
discovers evidence which, when considered with all other relevant evidence available to
it, shows that a right of way which is not shown in the map and statement subsists or is
reasonably alleged to subsist over land in the area to which the map relates, being a right
of way to such that the land over which the right subsists is a public path or a restricted
byway or, subject to section 54A, a Byway Open to All Traffic, it shall, by Order, make
such modifications to the Map and Statement as appear requisite

41.Section 31 of the Highways Act 1980 states that ‘where a way over any land, other than a
way of such character that use of it by the public could not give rise at common law to any
presumption of dedication, has been actually enjoyed by the public as of right and without
interruption for a full period of twenty years, the way Is to be deemed to have been
dedicated as a highway unless there is sufficient evidence that there was no intention
during that period to dedicate it'. The period of twenty years referred to is to be
calculated retrospectively from the date when the right of the public to use the way is
brought into question.

42.Alternatively, a public right of way may be established over a shorter period of time under
Commoan Law. In the case of Mann v. Brodie', Lord Blackbumn considered that where the
public had used a route ‘for so long and in such a manner that the [landowner]... must
have been aware that members of the public were acting under a belief that the right of
way had been dedicated and had taken no steps to disabuse them of their belief, it is not
conclusive evidence, but evidence which those who have lo find the fact may find that
there was a dedication by the owner whoever he was’, i.e. the dedication of a way as a
public right of way can be Implied by evidence of use by the public {no minimum period is
required) and of acquiescence of that use by the landowner.

' (1885) 10 App Cas 378

Page 36 10



CONCLUSION

43.As there is little mapping or documentary evidence in support, the application rests solely
on user evidence. Hence, in determining whether a right of way is reasonably alleged to
subsist, it is necessary to have regard to the provisions contained within section 31 of the
Highways Act 1980 (outlined above).

The ‘date of challenge’

44, The first step is to identify the date upon which the right of the public to use the route was
first brought into question (‘the date of challenge’). There is no precise definition of what
constitutes ‘bringing into question' the public’s right to use a particuiar route, but generally
speaking the public's right is brought into question when there is some sort of overt and
identifiable challenge ta such use, for example, by way of the erection of a notice telling
the public to ‘keep out' or the locking of a gate to physically prevent access.

45.In this case, there is no evidence that the use of the claimed route has ever been
chalienged in any way prior to the date of application (it was subsequently blocked off by
hoardings). Under these circumstances, as prescribed in section 69 of the Natural
Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006, the date of challenge is to be taken as the
date of application. | have therefore taken December 2011 as the date of challenge and
have considered very carefully the twenty-year period between 1991 and 2011 (‘the
material period') in my investigation.

‘as of right' use for a full period of 20 years

46.For use to have been ‘as of right’, it must have taken place without force, without secrecy
and without permission?

47.In relation to the length of use, it is clear that people have cut through from Burslem Road
to Greggs Wood Road on foot throughout the material period and until 2014 when the
hoardings were erected. There is no evidence that use of the claimed route has been
interrupted during this period.

48.There is no precise definition set out in statute as to the quantity of user evidence
required in order to satisfy the tests for presumed dedication. This will invariably depend
upon the particular circumstances of each case; for example, in a rural setting away from
any significant place of public resort, use is likely to be far less frequent than a path
serving a functional link within an urban area and thus the quantity of user evidence

| required to show that presumed dedication has occurred ig likely to be lower.

49.In this particular case, the route is a semi-urban utility route, with the majority of
witnesses citing their reason for use as ‘going to the shops’. 30 UEFs were completed by
witnesses and submitted with the application. From these 30, only 7 responded to the
offer of a face to face interview and 2 wrote stating that they had not, in fact, used the
claimed route. However, the other witnesses who submitted evidence as part of the
application had all signed to state that they had used the route as depicted on the plans
accompanying the application. 1 witness stated that they had rented a garage on that
site, so their use was potentially not ‘as of right', as they already had a right to be there.

2 R v. Oxfordshire County Council, ex p. Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 WLR 160

Page 37 11



50.There is no evidence to suggest use was by force or that use took place at any
unreasonable times; there is no evidence that anyone received permission to use the
claimed route.

Evidence of non-intention to dedicate

51.Even if all the legal tests relating to quality and quantity of use have been met, a public
right of way cannot come into being where there is evidence that the landowner
demonstrated a lack of intention to dedicate the claimed route. This lack of intention must
be communicated to the users of the claimed route, as confirned by Lord Hoffman in the
recent Godmanchester® case: ‘I think that upon the ftrue construction of s 31(1),
intention' means what the relevant audience, namely the users of the way, would
reasonably have understood the landowner's intention to be. The test is, as Hobhouse LJ
said, objective: not what the owner subjectively intended nor what particular users of the
way subjectively assumed, but whether a reasonable user would have understood that
the owner was intending... to ‘disabuse [him]' of the notion that the way was a public
highway'.

52.In this case, the landowner has never erected prohibitive notices, barriers or other works
to deter use until the present hoardings were erected around the site prior to the
development commencing. There has never been a Deposit submitted under section
31(6) of the Highways Act 1980 by any owner of the land. Therefore, the conclusion can
be drawn that the landowner has never shown an intention not to dedicate any way as a
public right of way over the land in question.

53.In this case, there is no inference of dedication under Common Law. The area was a site
for rented garages with an open area for cars. Boilards located at approximately haif
distance across the site were placed to prevent cars cutting through but clearly allowed
access for pedestrians. There was never anything to mark out a specific pathway or
route for walkers and therefore it can be reasonably deduced that there has not been an
inference of dedication at Common Law.

Whether a right of way is ‘reasonably alleged to subsist’

54.The tests contained in section 31 of the Highways Act 1980 (set out above) are to be
considered in conjunction with the requirement in section 53 of the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 that a right of way must be shown to ‘subsist' or is reasonably
alleged to subsist’. This issue was considered in the case of Norton and Bagshaw?, in
which the judge distinguished between the two tests to be applied and stated that in
deciding whether or not to make a Definitive Map Modification Order the question to be
asked is thus: ‘does the evidence produced by the claimant together with all the other
evidence available show that either (a) a right of way subsists? [known as ‘test AY, or (b)
is it reasonable to allege that a right of way subsists? [known as test BT. The test to be
applied is not therefore whether it is reasonable for the claimant to allege that a right
exists, but rather whether a reasonable person, having considered all the relevant
evidence available, could reasonably allege a right of way to subsist.

2 R {Godmanchester) v Secretary of Stale for the Environment [2007} 4 All ER 273 at page 284
* R v Secretary of State for the Environment, ex parte Norlon and Bagshaw (1894) 68 P&CR 404 at page 408

Page 38 12



55.This approach was subsequently affirmed in the Emery® case, in which the judge said
this: ‘where the applicant for a modification order produces credible evidence of actual
enjoyment of a way as a public right of way over a full period of 20 years... then the
allegation that the right of way subsists is reasonable’.

56.In the present case, there is clear evidence that people have used the garage area as a
cut through from Burslem Road to Greggs Wood Road {or vice versa) over the years.
Although there are a couple of variations, the claimed route - both points of entry to the
garage area being bounded on either side - has been frequently used by a large number
of people over the material period without interruption. In addition, the landowner has not
challenged that use in any way during the material period, nor made it clear to the public
that it was not a right of way. Therefore, it is reasonable, having considered all the
relevant evidence available, to allege that a right of way subsists over the claimed route.

Other matters

57. The County Councll is aware that the landowner has commenced development of the site
and that the right of way as claimed is no longer physically available on the ground.
However, the County Council is unable to take that matter into account in reaching its
decision on the application. Problems this may cause for both the landowner and users
may need to be resolved under other legislation.

RECOMMENDATION

58.1 therefore recommend that the County Council makes an Order to modify the Definitive
Map and Statement by adding a public footpath running from Burslem Road to Greggs
Wood Road at Tunbridge Wells, as shown on the attached plan marked Appendix A.

5 R v Secrelary of State for Wales, ex parte Emery [1998] 2 AYt ER 367 at page 379

Page 39 13



Page 40



"34)u8d (43N remuy)
"QUON Apunwios ‘sdoys ‘dojs sng ayj o) Aeg 100J UO L1L0Z-£861 aPer
"801)§0 Js0d ‘Jsiwayo ‘Aseiq| {43n ren)
'BUON ‘anuas Aunwwod ‘sdoys ayy oy ob o) Aplespa Jjooy UD L LOZ-2961 soybny Ayjownn ]
“aJjuad AjUNWLWod (43n remuyg)
"‘BUON “1siwayo ‘Ale.q) ‘aayo 1sod ay) 0} 06 o FANEETTY 100} UQD LLOZ-Z961 saybnyH eway]
(4an renuy)
"BUON ‘sdoys 0} 06 0], Ale@ 100} uQ 1 102-2961 SSE(S) pleuoy
(43n remuy)
“QUON ‘Buiddoys Bujc Apeq 100} UQ LLOZ-6 sSSe|9 ueap
(majnsoyu))
‘BUON -dojs snq pue 20140 ysod ayy 0y ob o Aeqg jo0} UD ¥102-8261 JjIsuuny BIUOS
pawie|d 0} jJuslayip dew uo payJew INoY “1SIWwaLo (ma1azayu))
"aUON pue axyo 1sod ‘sdoys ay) o) 06 o) JAVEETY 100} UQ $102-1161 jlewung ueor siw
‘as10a.d jou

uonduosap pue dew uo payJew jou anoy doys snq ayj 0} ob 0} igNL pue a10)s {maiasoyu))
‘auop | |essueb p 90110 Jsod “isiwsyo ay) 0y ob o joom B sauwi) p-¢ 100§ UD) v1.0Z-7961 Wiepy Aaapny s
(43n 1emuy
‘Bop ay) yem o) ‘'snq ay) Aauejayy

"BUON ysieo o} ‘aoyo Jsod ‘sdoys ayj o} 06 0, Areq 100} U LLOZ-266) eioljed si

Aljeuoisenso {som19 + 43N 1eN)
"BUON ‘Buryjem Bop ‘sdoys ay) 0y o6 o] MOU ‘Ajfemu ApRaapa 00U0 | LLDZ-S.0.61 e ve|i s
Alleuoiseaso (1em@] + 43N reniuy)
QUON ‘Bupjiem Bop 'sdoys ayjoy 0B o) |  mou ‘ysed ayi ul Ajleg 1004UD | L1L0Z-S.0461 lieo plaeq
(33N 1enuy)
"‘BUON ‘2jnod snq pue sdoyg Apisam 1004 UQ Ll02-8461 ysng piemp3
(33n 1enyuy)
"QUON ‘@)noJ snq pue sdoyg LANEETT 100} UD LLOZ-8461 ysng umeq sI\
"suIq a1@aym Jnoge
das DgMLL 8yl 0 Y} 0 ‘spually Bumisia (4an remuy)
"BUON ‘younyo 0y off 0y 'sdoys ay) o} o6 o Apjeapn 100} UQ L LOZ-S961 sAegq Jojluuap
(4an repm)
auoN -‘Burddoys Jo si0)20Q j9am B saun) £-2 100} UQ LLOZ-196) | nNesseq uoue SIN
{43n 1enuy)
"BUON "snq pue sdoyg Areg 100} UQ LL0Z-296L | W/eg AQny SIN
N0 Yoys {43n eniy))
"BUON e se pue doys doyg-suQ ayi oy ob o] Alleucisesn 100} UQ 110Z-0002 uapJeg |ned
SIDLLON / SNOISSINYId asn SNVYIW a3asn

{ SNOILDIMLSIY / SNOILONYLSEO SN J0d4 NOSY3Y 40 ALRIVINO3Y LYHM A9 | AVM §31V0Q JNVN

s{|op abpuqun ] je peoy poop shBain o} peoy wa|sing wody yledjoo4 pawie|d yeD/MLIMOYd




[9IN0J pawie|d ay; pasn Jaasu pey Asy) Bunels §1/L0/9Z Palep 910N #

(43N (1eniuy)

‘SUON ‘Ino Loys e sy AlleuoiseanQ 100} UQ ¥102-€861 SWeliIMm yueld

(43n remu)

‘BUON ao1jo jsod ‘doys ayj oy ob o Al[BUQISED20) 1004 UD LLOZ-SO61 laumo] elad S|

(43n 1enuy)

"SUON ‘PURlj B 835 0L %oam e shep 9 oju0 L L02-2661 PioyiL d

(£3n 1emuy)

"BUON Jn2 Yoys ‘sng 'sdoys ‘Bunjem Gog Apjeaan 100} UQD L L0Z-2661 UOSUIAS)G uyopr

pawies o} juasayip ueld uo payiew anoy {ma1aaayu))

‘BUON "sdoys pue sasng Apjoap 100} UQ LLOZ-E96! uapels pReg

(mo)rsagpy)

"BUON "dojs sng ‘ZNL doyg Aleg 100J UQ | ¥L0Z-S.096L | Noog suydeq W

(43n remu)

"BUON ‘20140 1sed |es0) ay o) Buiohb ‘Buiddoyg Areq 100} UQ LLOZ-+861 uapmoy (A9
SOLNBWOS PE0y POCA) SDDaIS) 0) U JiXe
{ypou) aaljeuss)e asn pinom ay paje)s

0sj2 1ng pawed se ueyd uo payJew anNoy (marniayu)) sepueyn

‘SUON ‘sdoys sy} 0} 06 0 Aptesm 100} UO FLOZ-1LB61 -weyda uve|y 1y

(43n reniw)

"3UON 'sdoys ayj oy 06 o). Alreg Jooj uQ LL0Z-1002 [IBUUIND W SIN

(430 remuy)

#* utsen

‘BUON ‘sdoysayojobo) AP EETT 1004 U L LOZ-6861 -Leq aduer sIp

% (43N renuy)

"BUOpN "doys sng pue sdoys o) ssaooe 104 Ao 100J UD LLOZ-6861 uipew ueug

'sdoys Apjsam (23n 1eniuy)

"BUON pue soiyo 1sod poomshbale o) ob o) pug Ajlep usamiag 100} UQ LLOZ-1L961 uohjey suoqg SIN

‘anued {43 remuy)

*BUON Ajunwwes ‘sdoys 'dojs sng sy o) Alleqg j00} UD LL0Z-€861 8j987 uesng

S3DILON / SNOISSINYA asn SNVIN asasn
I SNOILLOIMAS Y / SNOILONYWLSEO SN HO4 NOSYIY 40 ALY TIND3N 1VHM A8 | AVM S31VYQ 3WNVN

sliem 2Bpuquny je peoy poopm sB6a19 0} peoy wejsing wous Yiedjoo paune|d gyeI/MLMONd




7 Aug 2015

Tel: 01892 519353

Petition

Aerendix £

Mr & Mrs Spitties
131 Greggs Wood Rd
Tunbridge Wells
Kent TNZ 35Q

This is a petition to stop a public walkway between Burslem Road into Greggs Wood Road. There has
never been a footpath or walkway between these two roads and residents do not wish this to

happen.

Name Address Sig

P LA 129 G*&c&c&s‘wwcf ‘ [

f'(ed‘\er(-éJ gﬂqu 12@(;,‘( —r'//w[_.ﬂ_l_‘. gﬁ@_\g
Py Q,{)o. %ch rb\G"{%ch._‘ﬁ’oQA Q& e Setctic
Theik TS |z S| AT
WM;M' ] . C; 7,42%2

Q-’V\N\& E,LLQ.S l33 G(N@S Uk.)CCé 25{ ZéZC\J-_.;"T____“;

A““\OWS Fuas

1 Grggs (o R

Chns Turled

170 Greegs wgc&d

Peder gy,

BT CRge

Jerroy Geeohet

125 GREGES hCeD

ROAD
)35 A GRecesceP
KAﬂe N AsH ohn %/M |
Steve Hasd 1354 CEscatian
(773N

Page 43




Page 44



Address

N

\3S .
K CloRE, (q{\—ej‘jﬁucu:ol MM‘
— 135D Groggsmat
J OGN |rgnd Y
P Jor&on ’ \\\
2. AR &S
A 6‘%}/‘ o A
0 Chanter | % "%5" 0l
52 QBurslen
CMls | e T R e
S0 RURSLEM
lmmrdm,‘lj{, —TN 25TT CJ{%L M
C-0 2eley, T2 Larsten | o DELANL
f@&a h I | -S W &revenion
Avie Camteerd 4 B vesier é/yXW
40) ( ,
Susin Damun] 468 Boent |

. Lumm?»og

G o Gusslew
Ro ad

C M\Cum(‘(\u;O@

Page 45



Page 46



’ i ! : ,_"!_/
i 4
/4

/4
>y

ry Name Address Sig

rew Cotting f—_rkzl. rSurS(-e_?awﬂ_&S 1 =\
+ercd Corting e XTI iG>

Dam'e\ Lent¥ E"Z_ C?ro‘\l\u:l{avp DM
oo o ’rUnbr'\ f\‘e
L ennt Qvlfef‘ vjellj ‘ L‘W-

Fvin 90 Greggs bwd RA
. TNL RO EL £E—
T AN LW m AN 4}/&%@'&8 P — «
FESTHE Clesronans Tho&LS 1

TNZ TR

Tealfhne scoll | 128 g% CD-‘gco.,t/L

fo Y’

J Jollnsor 29 GLE4qY ‘l
“Oo°¢( .

S Briawe | TTP | 4G

Page 47



Page 48



4 OUE LA

)
™

Tel: 01892 519353

Petition

Vil oIVl S JpHLucy

131 Greggs Wood Rd
Tunbridge Wells
Kent TN2 31Q

This is a petition to stop a public walkway between Burslem Road into Greggs Wood Road. There has
never been a footpath or walkway between these two roads and residents do not wish this to

happen.

Name Address Sig

TP \ 1729 @ s tooo

deender Bays | g J B o| TR Zuys
D\\J\Q(}& SRS v A G—N%C&S/\-UQOA QY O‘S(ﬁaﬂcc_a
TR sATRES |3 TEEETLie0d R | 2 T,

TN LBINE . et

123 Greqes wood L4
3> Grefyp  Woed d

Ol e

Chas /\U(l%

o %5“&%%0\&

SN o

Ty

Bo okt Turey

Jenny Graeoner

135 GLEGE SNCOYD

20> OB,
Kamieé ~ASH 135 GREGGAwCOD
AT RcAD W"

Stave Hasd

1354

Grzec=S\acne 20

Page 49



Page 50



Address

Sig s/ 4

e

£

{ir B

£ - /M- (///ﬂ//'m

K-clork. 135¢ Qreggsvad Z/A
- 125D Grogagiioed
J 0 b} - CJQ@ N
R Jag5On , Q\
N o s> (2 Waries Lo /)
P chanklar | st Waties | £(C
52  fuslem
e i [ —
50 GuksLeMm
RO el B S N )
- nNZ 5T O
o 2] — 37(@MQL§3 P-D O&lpnEy
AT S, b \ | | S D Zrmpnso|
C ot M 7 Bukslers i
{P'UL- & g - {47@0
{8 RURSten :
SFin Kiman | aong S,
C Cumaawop iﬂaggursu, ™ | ¢ mcaa Mo
| ///é % ¢t Detrs can 7D ///////;;Vi

Page 51

A

x4



Page 52



Name

Address

Sig

Ve Coclianas

t+2- Burslem en

— T <—esb—y

¢

TELLY Cotiwny ":.'—&f‘%ﬁ_
Sue L«ﬁa’:’:ﬁ:‘i A (bo‘lshg“;\ N 5L\ Mezate
Acun \eete /;C:.,\:fo%“ss )"Qﬁcﬁ;’
Dan'ed keny b2 Grea\a’wo_dd VA /év(/j(
Leannc ?ullef‘ {Lord . ’fuiﬂfgf”{9¢ (,QC\,\/ML
%'T'ff@sﬁ*“ CANATES RO | Gedngran
LTAA CUsSN “TranZLS
Nz =z | TF Cechran
Fnam 190 &se g%é Yool C&”_\
W2 33&
Calhw Scoll |28 Graggowond D cop
Reoeved, /
}% 28 GREG(SWony M%
>
‘jJO)lﬂQOr-‘ Igﬁ( g

ﬂtq]u ,S.laﬁ&\ @bﬂrf»—p

I?_(M WLW

/

ok

jrone
£

Page 53



Page 54



	Agenda
	3 Application to extinguish Public Footpath WB71 in Tunbridge Wells

